Ancient Monuments in this township

1923 List

DEAN

- Stone circle: 400 yds. N. of Greyhound Inn, Studfold Gate, astride of a plantation fence; 8 stones remaining of a circle 100 ft. average diameter (J. R. Mason, N.S. xxiii, 34).
- Earthworks: "The Butts," S. of Dean; two mounds 70 yds. apart, locally supposed for archery. In the same field is Park hill, ? a fort; and trenches within an oval rampart enclosing an area about 100 yds. long. In adjacent field to N.W. cup-and-ring marked stone found 1918 (W. Dickinson O.S. iii, 345; J. R.Mason, N.S. xxiii, 34).
- *Church*, St. Oswald's, c. 1250, rebuilt 1447; late 15th cent.windows in chancel. Two graveslabs and a cross-base.

Domestic:

- (a) Branthwaite Hall, 1604 (Whellan, 353).
- (b) Crakeplace Hall, 1612 (M. W. Taylor, O.S. xii, 155)
- *Old road:* Eaglesfield–Dean–Ullock; near Ullock paved with boulders; continuing towards Brigham and Lamplugh (W.Dickinson, O.S. iii, 347).

Finds:

- (a) Cup-marked stone (above).
- (b) Bronze Age burial with "incense cups," found $1876^{-2}/_{3}$ m. W. of Ullock junction, near a circle of boulders destroyed c. 1867 (*ibid*)

See <u>Pastscape</u> for much more detail on these and more entries (60 in total – though there may be some overlap with other townships).